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NATIONAL ELECTRICAL GRID OF KYRGYZSTAN OJSC

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent au 
stated in the independent auditor’s report set out on pages 3-6 is made with a view to 
respective responsibilities of management and those of the independent auditor in rela 
statements of the National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan Open Joint Stock Company (th)

с itor’i’s responsibilities 
distinguish the 

ion to the financial 
e “Company”).

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the financial statemfei 
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023, the results of its opera 
changes in shareholders' capital of the Company for the year then ended, in accordant):' 
Financial Reporting Standards (the “IFRS").

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:

nts that present fairly 
tions, cash flows and 
e with the International

selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
stating whether IFRS have been followed; and
preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
Company will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal 
Company;
maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at a 
position of the Company, and which enable them to ensure that the financial statem 
comply with IFRS;
maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation of the Kyrgy^ 
IFRS;
taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of thb 
detecting and preventing fraud, errors and other irregularities.

control, throughout the

iy  time, the financial 
ents of the Company

Republic and the

Company; and

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 were approved and authorized for issue on 
March 26, 2024 by the Management of the Company.

On behalf of the Management of the Company:

% /
RysbekoVA. D. 
General Director

March 26, 2024 
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

Batyrbekov^ N. K.
Chief Accountant

March 26, 2024
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders, Board of Directors and Management of the National Electrical Gr 
Joint Stock Company:

Opinion

OpelnWe have audited the financial statements of National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan 
(the "Company”), which comprise of the statement of financial position as at Decembei 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
of significant accounting policies.

Joint Stock Company 
31,2023, the 
in equity and the 
including a summary

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material res 
position of the Company as at December 31, 2023, its financial performance and cash 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (the "IFRS”).

fbects, the financial 
flows for the year then

Basis for opinion

l$

tlh

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (the “ 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsib 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
“ IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
in the Kyrgyz Republic, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accord 
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtain 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most si 
of the financial statements of the current and comparative periods. These matters were 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion t 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Presentation o f financial statements

National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan OJSC in accordance with the order of the Cabinq 
Kyrgyz Republic #51-P dated February 8, 2022 and the order of the Ministry of Energy
# 01-13/23 dated February 18, 2022 joined Severelectro OJSC, Vostokelectro OJSC, t 
Oshelectro OJSC from August 1, 2022. IFRS does not apply to business combinations 
businesses under common control, respectively, Management has used its judgment a 
develop accounting policies that are relevant and reliable, in accordance with IAS 8.10

• For the purposes of presentation of these financial statements, comparative amoun 
merger had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, 
statements for 2022 include NEGK and all distribution companies.

d of Kyrgyzstan Open

As”). Our
lities for the Audit of 
accordance with the 

Accountants (the 
e financial statements 
ance with these 

i&d is sufficient and

gnificance in our audit 
addressed in the 

lereon, and we do not

t of Ministers of the 
of the Kyrgyz Republic 
alalabatelectro OJSC, 
involving entities or 
nd other standards to 
12:

:s are restated as if the 
Thus, the financial
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Under the pooling of interest method, the combining entity accounts for the combined assets and liabilities 
of the parties to be acquired at book value rather than fair value. A single accountin 3 policy should be 
applied in the financial statements for each class of property, plant and equipment. It is not feasible to 
calculate retrospectively the aggregate depreciated historical cost of the revalued assets of the distribution 
companies. Since property, plant and equipment at NEGK are measured in accordance with the cost 
model of IAS 16, and all property, plant and equipment in the combined financial statements must be 
valued on the same basis to achieve uniformity, a similar approach was applied to the property, plant and 
equipment of distribution companies. In accordance with IAS 8:23-27, management applies the cost 
approach prospectively from the earliest practicable date which is the beginning of the comparative period.

Impairment o f property, plant and equipment

The issue of testinq property, plant and equipment for impairment was one of the most significant for our 
audit, because property, plant and equipment represent a significant portion of the Company's total assets at 
the reportinq date, and also because the process of management's assessment of the recoverable amount of 
property, plant and equipment is complex, larqely subjective and is based on assumptions, in particular, on 
the forecast of established tariffs for the transmission and distribution of electricity, the costs of construction 
and repairs of existinq and under construction facilities, which depend on the expected future market or 
economic conditions in the Kyrqyz Republic.

We evaluated the assumptions and methodologies used, particularly those related to projected electricity 
sales revenues, long-term growth rates and discount rates. We studied the draft amendments to the 
Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of the Kyrgyz Republic “On Approval of the Medifjm-Term Electricity 
Tariff Policy of the Kyrgyz Republic for 2021-2025” dated September 30, 2021, No. 19$, under which annual 
indexation of tariffs by the inflation rate is planned. We compared observable model parameters, such as 
discount rates, with available external sources of information. We also analyzed the sehsitivity of the model to 
changes in key valuation parameters and the Company's disclosures of those assumptions on which the 
impairment test results are most sensitive.

Accounting for loans received

A significant part of the liabilities of the Company is accounted for by loans received frc|m the Government of 
the Kyrgyz Republic represented by the Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz Republic. Th э fair value of the loans 
at the date of initial recognition, as well as significant modifications of such financial instruments, is 
determined by the Company based on valuation models that may use complex assumptions and 
unobservable inputs. Different valuation methods and the use of different assumptions 
impact on the outcome of the fair value measurement. This issue was one of the most significant for our audit 
due to the application of significant management judgments in relation to the calculation of the fair value of 
loans received.

can have a significant

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which indicates that the Comp ny 
deficit as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the increase in tariffs to cover operating exp 
control by the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic. Currently, revenues from the transnji 
electricity are not always sufficient to cover operating costs. These financial statements 
adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties. These circumste 
modification of the auditor's opinion.

National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan OJSC is included in the register of strategic organizations of the Kyrgyz 
Republic. In accordance with the Law “On the special status of the Toktogul hydroelect-ic power plants and 
the national high voltage transmission line” dated December 28, 2001 # 7 the Company's property is protected 
by the state and the state-owned shares cannot be sold, pledged, exchanged for the pciyment of the Kyrgyz 
Republic external debt, transferred to the trust management to anyone, the Company’s property is not subject 
to any type of alienation, including indirect. The energy system of the Kyrgyz Republic is in the process of 
reform. In 2023, the Kyrgyz Republic government accepted the draft amendments to th£ regulation of the 
Cabinet of Ministers of the Kyrgyz Republic #192 dated September 30, 2021 “On Approval of the medium 
term electricity tariff policy of the Kyrgyz Republic for the period 2021 -2025” whereby from May 1, 2024 tariffs

has accumulated 
enses is subject to 
ission and sale of 
do not include any 
nces do not lead to

are planned to be increased and further indexed annually by the level of inflation. Such 
material changes to the financial statements which cannot be estimated reliably.

reforms may cause

4



This report has been prepared for the management, shareholders of the Company, the 
the Kyrgyz Republic (the “Ministry of Energy"), Asian Development Bank (the “ADB”) a 
fullest extent, permitted by the Law, our audit work has been undertaken so that we mi 
matters that we are required to report in an Auditor’s Report in accordance with ISA an 
purpose. We do not, in providing this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any с 
other person to whose knowledge this report may come to.

Ministry of Energy of 
(id World Bank. To the 
idht report those 
d IFRS and for no other 
ther purposes or to any

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible* for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial ste 
with IFRSs, compliance with the requirements of the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financik 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accc 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has nc 
to do so.

tements in accordance 
and for such interna! 

statements that are 
statements, 

concern, disclosing, as 
unting unless 
realistic alternative but

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterne 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's re 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thalt 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstati 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they coulql 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these firiaifi

nts as a whole are free 
$ort that includes our 

an audit conducted in 
ements can arise from 
reasonably be 
cial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, w 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain a i 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detectin 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frau 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intei 
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design a 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an op ni 
of the Company’s internal control;
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
and related disclosures made by management;
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going со 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to mo 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a goin^ 
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transact 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

»no

Consolidated

hether due to fraud or 
dit evidence that is 
j  a material 
d may involve 

r|nal control; 
udit procedures that 
on on the effectiveness

()>f accounting estimates

of accounting and, 
to events or conditions 
:ern. If we conclude 
eport to the related 
dify our opinion. Our 
> report. However, 

concern; 
including the 
ons and events in a
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiency: 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complie 
requirements regarding independence, and to comj^Hsnteate with them all relationships 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our inde^Etndencs, and «where applicable, relatecp

d with relevant ethical 
and other matters that 
safeguards.

Certified accountant, FCCA 
Certificate of auditor of the Kyrgyz Republic 
No. A 0069 dated October 19, 2009 
Audit Partner,
Director, Baker Tilly Bishkek LLC

Baker Tilly Bishkek LLC is registered in the "Register of audit organizations admitted fo 
Interest entities and large entrepreneurship entities" of the Unified state register of auidi 
organizations, professional audit associations. Individual registration number 2101510

March 26, 2024
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

• audit of public 
ors, audit

ilated August 9, 2023

the planned scope 
s in internal control
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NATIONAL ELECTRICAL GRID OF KYRGYZSTAN OJSC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in thousands o f Kyrgyz soms)

Notes Decembe •31, December 31,
2023 2022

(restated)
ASSETS:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 6 66,44 5,626 62,953,664
Advances paid, long-term part 7 4 3,999 -
Investments 31,940 19,075
Other assets, long term part 2,457 3,168

66,52 5,022 62,975,907

CURRENT ASSETS:
Inventories 8 1,66 3,649 1,710,702
Trade and other accounts receivable 9 1,25 3,696 1,553,143
Advances paid, short-term part 7 55,444 154,216
Taxes paid in advance 10 11 3,768 138,715
Restricted cash 11 3,047 8,777
Cash and cash equivalents 11 99 3,053 518,203
Other assets, short term part 33,692 16,137

4,14p,349 4,099,893

TOTAL ASSETS 70,66 5,371 67,075,800

7



NATIONAL ELECTRICAL GRID OF KYRGYZSTAN OJSC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023 (CONTINUED)
(in thousands o f Kyrgyz soms)_____________

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:

EQUITY:
Share capital 
Repurchased shares 
Reserve capital 
Accumulated deficit

TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Borrowings, long-term part
Deferred income, long-term part
Liabilities under contracts with suppliers
Deferred tax liabilities
Trade accounts payable, long-term part
Employee defined benefit obligations, long-term part

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Borrowings, short-term part
Trade accounts payable, shon:-term part
Advances received
Taxes payable
Employee benefit obligations
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

12

13
14
15

17
16

13
17
18
19 
21
20

December 31, 
2023

7,982,717
(10,092)
243,466

(7,227,721)

988,370

55,3!
1,3c

21
1,7:

1,080
5,163
2,074

,17828

150,332

58,77|6,827

6,15
2,60

38

0,508 
5,606 
0,555 

574,753 
904,304 
214,448

10,900,174

69,677,001

70,605,371

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

2,587,418
(10,092)
243,466

(3,813,182)

(992,390)

54,032,950
1,242,107

220,145
2,129,416

165,828
164,704

57,955,150

5,682,767
2,331,418

256,194
713,589
876,591
252,481

10,113,040

68,068,190

67,075,800

the Company:

Batyrbekovd N. K.
Chief Accountant

March 26, 2024 
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

The notes on pages 13-54 form an integral part of the financial statements. The independent auditor's report is on pages 3-6.

General

March 26,
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

On behalf of
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in thousands o f Kyrgyz soms)_____________________________________________

NATIONAL ELECTRICAL GRID OF KYRGYZSTAN OJSC

Notes For the veer 
ended 

December 31, 
2023

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

Revenue 22 22,568,572 19,826,373

Cost of sales 23 (17,856,828) (15,459,134)

GROSS PROFIT 4,711,744 4,367,239

Selling expenses 24 (2,372,488) (2,135,799)
General and administrative expenses 25 (1,117,376) (1,008,338)
Net loss on foreign exchange operations 26 (2,651,920) (238,428)
Finance gain 27 55,470 42,775
Finance costs 28 (3,762,201) (3,042,196)
Other operating income 29 961,871 449,374
Other operating expenses 29 (33,343) (66,011)
Other non-operating expenses, net 30 (155,682) (189,610)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (4,343,925) (1,820,994)

Income tax 31 4C|1,238 (4,102)

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR (3,942,687) (1,825,096)

Other comprehensive income 32,034 59,665

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (3,910,653) (1,765,431)

On behalf of the Management of the Company:

Rysttekov A. Jb.
General Director

March 26, 2024
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

Batyrbekoya N. K.
Chief Accountant

March 26, 2024
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

The notes on pages 13-54 form an integral part of the financial statements. The independent auditor's report is on pages 3-6.
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NATIONAL ELECTRICAL GRID OF KYRGYZSTAN OJSC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in thousands o f Kyrgyz soms)________________

Note Share capital Reserve Repurchased Acc 
capital shares

umulated Total equity 
deficit

as at December 31, 2021 12

Loss for the year
Dividends declared 12
Recognition of fair value of 
borrowings 13
Repurchased shares 
Revaluation of employee defined 
benefit obligation 16
Adjustments of previous years

2,587,418 243,466 C>,823,042) 7,842

(1,825,096)
(62,103)

847,175
(10,092)

59,665
(9,781)

as at December 31, 2022 
(restated) 2,587,418 243,466 (10,092) 0,813,182) (992,390)

Loss for the year 
Recognition of fair value of 
borrowings
Revaluation of employee defined 
benefit obligation 
Adjustments of previous years 
Shares issued

as at December 31, 2023

13

16

12

12

5,395,299

7,982,717

the Company:

243,466

$,942,687)

497,267

32,034 
(1,153)

(10,092) ( ,227,721)

Batyrbekovar'N. K.
Chief Accountant

March 26, 2024 
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

The notes on pages 13-54 form an integral part of the financial statements. The independent auditor's report

(3,942,687)

497,267

32,034
(1,153)

5,395,299

988,370

is on pages 3-6,

General

March 26, 2024
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in thousands o f Kyrgyz soms)_____________________________ __

NATIONAL ELECTRICAL GRID OF KYRGYZSTAN OJSC

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of services 
Other proceeds 
Interest received
Payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Payroll and related taxes 
Other payments

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest paid 
Income tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of fixed assets 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 
Interest and dividens received 
Repayment of deposit

Net cash flows used from financing activities

Notes

13

For the > 
ended 

Decembe 
2023

ear

Г31,

22,426 
77 
4|2 

(2,50 
(8 90p

29p

,013
14,876

,605
7,005)
,822)
388)

2,53b,279

(1,51 3,605)
.371)(2

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

16,397,961
676,298

(2,767,749)
(5,106,025)
(3,340,789)

5,859,696

(621,973)
(169,426)

5,068,297

(6,449,113)
241
493

8,000

(6,440,379)
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N A TIO N A L ELECTR ICAL GRID OF K YR G YZSTA N  OJSC  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 (CONTINUED)
(in thousands o f Kyrgyz soms)________________________________

Notes For the year 
ended

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from borrowings 
Repayment of borrowings 
Increase in share capital 
Repurchase of shares 
Dividends paid
Other proceeds from financing activities 

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents

NET INCREASE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year

Changes in restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents, at the end of the year

Decembe 31,
2023

13 3,10 5,561
13 (5,67 5,681)
12 5,39 5,299

12 (31,873)
66,885

11

11

On behalf of the Management of the Company:

L

M -
R^Sbekov A1 D.
General Director

March 26, 2C24 
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

м .

2,860,191

(183,262)

487,296

51 B,203

(3,446)

99b,053

Batyrbekovsf N. K.
Chief Accountant

March 26, 2024
Bishkek, the Kyrgyz Republic

The notes on pages 13-54 form an integral part of the financial statements. The independent auditor's report

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

6,005,407
(2,655,195)

(636)
(26,399)

3,323,177

(72,982)

1,878,113

1,052,496

(2,412,406)

518,203

s on pages 3-6.

I
12



NATIONAL ELECTRICAL GRID OF KYRGYZSTAN OJSC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(in thousands o f Kyrgyz soms, unless otherwise stated)

1. BACKGROUND

National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan OJSC (hereinafter —  the “Company”) was 
September 7, 2001 as a result of reorganization of Kyrgyzenergo OJSC. During 2 
Kyrgyzenergo OJSC was carried out in accordance with long-term governmental 
“Reorganization and privatization of Kyrgyzenergo JSC” appointed by the decisiofi 
333 dated July 5, 1998. As a result of reorganization, Kyrgyzenergo OJSC was 
formed companies, becoming successors of assets and liabilities, as well as ope 
Kyrgyzenergo OJSC. Shareholders of Kyrgyzenergo OJSC received equivalent s 
companies.

established on 
001 the division of 
Drogram

of Government No. 
ided into seven newly 

r)ating activity of 
lares in newly formed

div

The Company was initially registered in the Ministry of Justice of the Kyrgyz Repi 
2001, certificate No. 16742-3301-ОАО and reincorporated on November 11, 2023

National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan OJSC in accordance with the order of the 
the Kyrgyz Republic #51-P dated February 8, 2022 and with the order of the Mini 
Kyrgyz Republic # 01 -13/23 dated February 18, 2022 joined Severelectro OJSC, 
Jalalabatelectro OJSC, Oshelectro OJSC from August 1, 2022.

The Company is a legal entity, registered in accordance with the law of the Kyrgy^ Republic and is 
responsible for the following activities:

transmission of electric power, according to license No. 341 of September 7, 
distribution of electric power, according to license No. 342 of September 7, 
sale of electric power, according to license No. 343 of September 7, 2022; 
export of electric power, according to license No. 344 dated September 7, 
import of electric power, according to license No. 345 dated September 7,

20

202
202 :

The Company consists of 9 branches and head office located in Bishkek, conducl 
coordinative control on operational and maintenance field activities of the branch^ 
includes the following branches: Chui, Issyk-Kul, Naryn, Talas, Osh, Batken, Jala' 
voltage electrical grid plants, and the Training Center.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 the structure of sharehold

December 31, 2023

Eirs is presented as

Ministry of Energy of the Kyrgyz 
Republic
Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz 
Republic
Other legal entities 
Individuals
National Energy Holding Company 
OJSC
Social Fund of the Kyrgyz Republic

Amount, 
thousand soms

4,817,148

2,660,640
386,967
117,962

Share
Decemln
Amoun

thousand

60.34%

33.33%
4.85%
1.48%

blic on December 25,

Cabinet of Ministers of 
i^try of Energy of the 
^/ostokelectro OJSC,

2022;
22;

!2 ;

!2 ;

ing administrative and 
s. The Company 
-Abad, Bishkek high-

follows:

er31, 2022 (restated) 
t, Share

soms

6,998
107,386

2,0£!2,489
340,545

2 .20%
4.15%

80.49%
13.16%

7,982,717 100% 2,587,418 100%

Total number of the Company’s employees as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 equaled to 10,452 and 
10,436 workers, respectively.

Registered address: 326, Zhibek Zholu av., Bishkek, 720070, Ihe Kyrgyz Republic :̂.

13



The financial statements were approved by the Management of the Company on

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2024.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Standards (the “IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ( 
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Corh

Use of estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires man 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliti 
expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Due to the inhere 
making those estimates, actual results reported in future periods could differ from 
key sources of estimation of uncertainty in these financial statements are presented

Financial Reporting 
he “ IASB”) and 
mittee (the “ IFRIC”).

cjgement to make 
es, revenues and 
nt uncertainty in 
such estimates. The 

in Note 4.

Functional and reporting currencies

cumItems included in the Company's financial statements are measured using the 
the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances related to th 
"functional currency"). Functional and reporting currency of the presentation of th$ 
statements is Kyrgyz som (the “som”).

ency that best reflects 
в Company (the 
se financial

These financial statements are presented in thousands of soms, unless otherwise 
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, with the ex' 
measurement of certain financial instruments that are carried at fair value.

Going concern

indicated. These 
deption of the

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Comb 
going concern. The increase in tariffs to cover operating costs is subject to contra 
the Kyrgyz Republic. Currently, revenues from the transmission and sale of electr 
sufficient to cover operating costs. These financial statements do not include any 
result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

any will continue as a 
by the Government of 

city are not always 
adjustments that might

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, accumulated loss is equaled to 7,227,721 th 
3,813,182 thousand soms, respectively. The Company is included in the list of str|a' 
the Kyrgyz Republic. The whole energy system of the Kyrgyz Republic is experieri 
restructuring and reform. Such reforms may cause material changes to the financ 
cannot be estimated reliably.

The Company actively participates in the implementation of the CASA-1000 proje 
the World Bank G'oup, the Islamic Development Bank, European Investment Ban 
other international donor organizations. The purpose of the Project is to create со 
electricity trade conditions between Tajikistan and the Kyrgyz Republic in the Cen|t 
Afghanistan and Pakistan in the South Asia, as a result of which the Company ex 
increase in revenues from the transmission of electrical energy from export.

o f tiAccording to Article 5 of the Law of the Kyrgyz Republic On the Special Status 
Toktogul Hydroelectric Power Plants and the National High-Voitage Transmission 
principles of the state policy towards the Company is state incentives, which the 
will enable the Company to continue its operations in the foreseeable future.

□usand soms and 
tegic organizations of 
cing significant 
al statements which

ct with the support of 
k, as well as several 
nditions for sustainable 
ral Asia and 

sects a significant

he Cascade o f 
Line, one of the 

njianagement believes

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Revenue and expense recognition

The Company’s revenues from sales of goods and providing services are accounl 
basis in accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”, whic 
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS

ed for on the accrual 
l represents a five-step 
5, revenue is
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recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company exjpects to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit associated \|vith the transaction will 
flow to the Company and the amount can be reliably measured.

Expenses are accounted for at the time the actual flow of the related goods or sef 
of when cash or their equivalent are paid, and are reported in the financial staterr 
which they relate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, cash in transit and cash at banks.

Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, acquired after foundation of 
carried at revalued cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated im 
plant and equipment constructed by the Company itself include cost of materials, 
related part of overhead production expenses. When property, plant and equipment i 

components with different useful lives, these components are accounted separately.

Construction in progress comprises costs directly related to the construction of property, plant and 
equipment including an appropriate allocation of directly attributable variable overheads that are incurred 
in construction less impairment losses. Depreciation of these assets, on the sam^ basis as for other 
property assets, commences when the assets are put into operation.

Capitalized cost includes major expenditures for improvements and replacement^ that extend the useful

vices occur, regardless 
ents in the period to

the Company, are 
p^iirment loss. Property, 

direct labor costs and 
include significant

lives of the assets or increase their revenue generating capacity. Repairs and ma 
are reflected in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income w 
expenses as incurred unless they meet the requirements for capitalization.

ntenance expenditures 
thin operating

Depreciation is computed under the straight-line method and reflected in the stat^ 
and other comprehensive income. Depreciation is charged from the moment of a 
related to assets constructed by the Company itself, from the moment of com plete 
works and putting into operations.

Useful lives for depreciation are as follows:

Buildings and constructions;
Equipment 
Office equipment;
Furniture and fixtures;
Vehicles;
Intangible assets (software);
Other

ment of profit or loss 
$sets acquisition or, 

n of construction

The costs of maintenance, repairs, and replacement of minor items of property are 
maintenance expense. Upon sale or disposal, the cost and related accumulated d 
eliminated from the financial statements. Any resulting gains or losses are include 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

э charged to 
epreciation are 
d iri the statement of

Impairment of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

On each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its ta 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffers 
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is impossible to estimate the reco 
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-gen 
the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to 
Impairment losses are recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant

5-100 years
2-59 years
3-10 years 
3-15 years 
5-50 years 
5-10 years 
5-10 years

hgible and intangible 
d an impairment loss. 

0rder to determine the 
vferable amount of an 
erating unit to which

less than its carrying 
recoverable amount, 

asset is land,
its
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buildings, or equipment, carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairm 
decrease in the related revaluation reserve.

ent loss is treated as a

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the ass 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that th 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined h 
been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of 
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increas

et (cash-generating 
s increased carrying 
ad no impairment loss 
an impairment loss is 

revalued amount, in

Inventories

foInventories are accounted for at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost 
using the weighted-average method, for the rest inventories using the FIFO methbi

Recognition and valuation of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Company’s statem^i 
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrume 
reflects purchasing and sale of financial assets and liabilities, which have regular 
settlements.

r fuel is determined 
id.

nt of financial position 
nt. The Company 
nature at the date of

cost of financial 
h profit or loss, is 

^t or financial liability 
s are disclosed in

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. The acquisition 
assets and liabilities that are not financial assets and liabilities at fair value throug 
adjusted for transaction costs, directly related to the acquisition of a financial ass 
origination. The principles of subsequent valuation of financial assets and liabilitie 
appropriate accounting policies set out below.

The Company classifies financial assets in the following main categories:

• Financial asset measured at amortized cost;
• Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (fVOCI);
• Financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments

The classification and subsequent accounting of debt instruments depend on:

• Business model of the Company used to manage financial assets;
• Characteristics of the financial asset and the contractual cash flows.

Gains or losses on debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss ^re recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss as part of the “Net Trade Income”.

Equity instruments

The Company holds the equity instruments of its subsidiaries over which it has cc 
financial statements the Company accounts for investments in subsidiaries at hist 
Company applies uniform accounting treatment for each of its investments in subei 
cost.

Reclassification

The Company reclassifies financial assets if and only if the business model objec 
assets changes so its previous model assessment would no longer apply. If reclai: 
it must be done prospectively from the reclassification date which is defined as the 
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not 
recognised gains, losses or interest.

Derecognition of financial assets

ntrol. In preparing 
orical cost. The 
idiaries at historical

ive for its financial 
sification is performed, 
first day of the first 

■estate any previously

The recognition of a financial asset (or, if applicable, part of a financial asset or рг rt of a group of similar 
financial assets) ceases when:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have ceased;
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the Company transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or res 
receive cash flows from the asset, but became obliged to pay these cash flow 
delay to a third party under the ‘transfer’ agreement; and 
the Company either (a) transferred almost all the risks and rewards related to 
transfer and did not retain almost all the risks and rewards related to the asse 
control over the asset.

ёп/ed the right to 
з without significant

the asset, or (b) did not 
but transferred a

Classification and subsequent accounting of financial liabilities

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amor|tized cost. 

Offset of assets and liabilities

The Company's financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount repo 
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognisep 
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability sim

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial obligation (or part of it) is considered extinguished when the debtor:

(a) either fulfils this obligation (or part of it) by paying off the lender, generally in с 
assets, goods or services,

(b) is either legally relieved of primary liability for that obligation (or part of it), as result of the 
performance of the legal procedure or as a result of the creditor's decision.

•ted in the Statement of 
amounts and there is 

ultaneously.

ash, other financial

Derecognition of financial liabilities occurs also in the case of significant changes 
present value of cash flows in accordance with the new conditions, including the 
after deduction of commission received, discounted at the original effective intere 
least 10% of the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the origi

Impairment of financial assets

in cash flows, i.e. if the 
jayment of commission 
it  rate, differs by at 
nal financial liability.

The application of IFRS 9 has not radically changed the accounting treatment usqd by the Company in 
respect of impairment losses on financial assets.

IFRS 9 requires the Company to reflect estimated reserves and expected debt an 
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company uses a simplified approach to the impairment of trade account receivables, due from 
banks, which do not contain significant financing component. The simplified approach does not require 
tracking of changes in credit risk and expected credit losses can be modeled for tp 
financial asset.

d financial assets not

те expected life of the

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other compn 
period in which they are incurred. Any discounts or premiums associated with Ьоф 
to income based on the effective interest rate method.

•fchensive income in the 
owings are recorded

Borrowings -  All borrowings are initially recorded at the fair value of the proceeds 
issue costs. Subsequent to initial recognition all borrowings are measured at amo 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement.

received, net of direct 
1ized cost, which is

Borrowing costs -  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construct 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of tirh 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and oth^r comprehensive 
income in the period in which they are incurred.

ion or production of 
e to get ready for their 

assets are
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Foreign currency translation

tDMonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
market rates prevailing at December 31, 2023 and 2022. Transactions denomina 
currencies are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the tran 
losses arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the trafi 
as an exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehe

Kyrgyz som at the 
ted in foreign 
saction. Any gains or 
saction are included 
nsive income.

According to the National Bank of the Kyrgyz Republic as at December 31, 2023 
rates of foreign currencies to the Kyrgyz som were as follows:

December 31, 
2Q23

Kyrgyz som / US Dollar 89.0853
Kyrgyz som / Euro 98.5328
Kyrgyz som / Russian ruble 0.9935
Kyrgyz som / Kazakhstani tenge 0.1960
Kyrgyz som / Special drawing rights fl 19.5599

and 2022 the official

December 31, 
2022

85.6800 
91.4377 

1.1763 
0.1852 

114.0271

Taxation

takiIncome tax expense represents the sum of current taxes payable and deferred 
calculates current tax based on tax accounting and prepared in accordance with 
the Kyrgyz Republic which may differ from International Financial Reporting StanfJ 
income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 in the Kyrgyz

es. The Company 
he tax regulations of 
ards. The corporate 

Republic was 10%.

The Company is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the certain e 
deductible for taxation purposes as well as the possibility of non-taxable income

><penditures are not

ounting value of assetsDeferred tax reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the acct 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temporary 
differences as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 relate mostly to different methods| of income and 
expense recognition as well as to accounting value of certain assets.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit diljfers from net profit as 
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income becaiise of items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. 
The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have beerji enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amount 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
profit. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary d 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deducti 
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recogn 
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a busin 
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit no

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differe ice arises from 
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of ot le r assets and 
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting >rofit.

Company is able to 
ry difference will not

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences, when the 
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporar 
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences 
associated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent (hat it is probable that 
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences 
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

:s of assets and 
computation of taxable 
fferences to the extent 
Die temporary 
zed if the temporary 
ess combination) of 
r the accounting profit.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reportin 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avai 
of the asset to be recovered.

g period and reduced 
able to allow all or part

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
settled or the asset realized. Deferred tax is reflected in the statement of profit or 
comprehensive income, except when they connected with items, which are direct]! 
in this case deferred tax is also reflected within equity.

The Company conducts netting of deferred tax assets and liabilities and reflects Nummary difference in 
the financial statements, if:

The Company has a legally enforceable right for netting current tax assets ag 
liabilities; and
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to corporate taxes levied 
authority from the same taxable entity.

In addition to income tax there are requirements on accrual and payments of vari 
the Company’s activities in the Kyrgyz Republic where the Company performs its

Borrowings

in which the liability is 
loss and other 
у related to equity, and

ainst current tax 

by the same taxation

ous taxes applicable to 
activities.

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently received amounts 
amortized cost and difference between the carrying and the redemption value is 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the 
effective interest method within interest expense.

are reflected at 
recognized in the 

borrowings using the

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in these financial statements. They are d 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A 
recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic

Share capital

sclosed unless the 
contingent asset is not 
benefits is probable.

Share capital is recognized at initial cost.

Dividends are recorded as a reduction in the period in which they are declared. D 
the balance sheet date is treated as an event after the balance sheet date under 
the Reporting Period” and information about it is disclosed accordingly.

Pension liabilities

In accordance with the laws of the Kyrgyz Republic the Company withholds the a 
contributions from employee's salaries and transfers them to the State pension fu 
pension system provides for the calculation of current payments by the employer 
current gross salary payments. Such expenses are recognized in the period, whic 
appropriately payment for employees. At retirement, all pension payments are im 
mentioned pension fund.

vidends declared after 
AS 10 “Events after

i|nount of pension 
id . The existing 
as a percentage of 
h includes
plemented by above

The Company has additional pension arrangements and defined benefit plan sep 
pension system of the Kyrgyz Republic. The Company has no other benefits prov 
upon retirement, or other significant compensated benefits requiring accrual.

Employee defined benefit obligation

The Company voluntarily offers its employees long-term post-retirement benefits in accordance with the 
collective agreement between Company and employees, the Company's regulations, and other 
documents, including those determined by the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic, which, in particular, 
stipulate payments related to retirement, anniversaries, provision of material assistance in the event of
death of pensioners, etc. Eligibility for receipt of benefit is usually granted depend 
remaining to retirement and availability of minimum length of service.

•fcrate from the State 
ded to employees

ng on the period
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actuarial assumptions 
nd actual data.

The estimated costs of lump-sum benefits are accrued over the course of an employee's employment 
using the methodology that is used to calculate post-employment defined benefit plans. For a post­
employment defined benefit plan, the difference between the fair value of the persion assets (if any) and 
the present value of the pension liabilities is recognized as an asset or liability in the statement of 
financial position.

Actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are recognized through other comprehensive income 
For this purpose, actuarial gains and losses include both the effect of changes in 
and the effect of past experience on differences between actuarial assumptions t  
Revaluation results are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Other changes in net surplus or deficit are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, 
including the cost of current services and impact of any reduction of staff or dismissal.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Application of new and revised International financial reporting standards

The Company has adopted the following new or revised standards and interpretations issued by 
International Accounting Standards Board and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (the “ IFRIC”) which became effective for the Company’s financial statement for the year 
ended December 31, 2023:

• Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, which issued tion-mandatory practical 
recommendations for making judgments about materiality required in leaking decisions about 
disclosures in financial statements.

• Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes, which addresses the accounting for deferred tax in certain 
transactions.

• Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estinhates and Errors, which 
clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that 
the Company develops accounting estimates to achieve the objective эф! out in the accounting 
policies.

• The new standard IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2023. The standard establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts.

The adoption of the new or revised standards did not have significant effect on the financial position or 
performance of the Company in the financial statements.

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

A number of new Standards and Interpretations has been issued and not yet adopted as at December 31, 
2023 and had not been applied in preparation of these financial statements. Following Standards and 
Interpretations are relevant to operations of the Company. The Company intends to adopt these Standards 
and Interpretations from their effective dates. The Company has not analyzed potential effect of adoption 
of these standards on its financial statements.

At the date of authorization of this financial information, the following new standards and interpretations 
were in issue, but not mandatorily yet effective, and which the Company has not early adopted:

• Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of cash flows” and IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” 
which will introduce targeted disclosure requirements that will enhance transparency of supplier 
finance arrangements and their effects on Company’s liabilities and cash flows.
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Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements" requires to classify liabilities as 
current or noncurrent based on Company’s rights to defer settlement for at least 12 months which 
must exist and have a substance as at the reporting date. Only covenants with which a company 
must comply on or before the reporting date may affect this right.

• Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases” which introduce a new model for accounting of variable 
payments and will require seller-lessees to reassess and possibly restate sale-leaseback 
transactions.

• Introduction of IFRS S1 “General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustahability-related Financial 
Information” and IFRS S2 “Climate-related Disclosures” which provide a framework for Companies 
to report on all sustainability-related topics across the areas of governance, strategy and risk 
management. These standards are also designed to disclose information that is expected to affect 
the assessments that investors make about Company’s future cash flows.

The Company intends to adopt these new standards and amendments, if applicable, when they become 
effective.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the management 
is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed regularly. Changes in accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the assessment is reviewed if the change affecls only that period or the 
period of change and future periods if the change affects both current and in the future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions about the future and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the reporting 
date, which may cause significant adjustments of the carrying value of assets and liabilities during the 
next financial year, are discussed below. Assumptions and estimates are based on the Company’s 
source data, which it had at the time of preparation of the financial statements.

However, current circumstances and assumptions regarding the future are subject to change due to 
market changes or circumstances beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions as they occur.

Useful economic lives of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

The Company estimates the useful lives of fixed assets at each reporting date. The estimation of the 
useful lives of fixed assets depends on factors such as economical use, repair and customer service 
programs, technological progress and other business conditions. Management’s assessment of the 
useful lives of fixed assets reflects the relevant information available to management as of the date of 
the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit, exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value 
less costs to sell is based on available information on commercial deals of sales of similar assets or 
observable market prices less incremental costs incurred in connection with the disposal of an asset.
The calculation of value in use is based on a discounted cash flow model. Cash flows are taken from the 
budget for the next three years and do not include restructuring activity, in conducting of which the 
Company does not have obligations or significant investment in future, which will improve the asset 
tested for impairment of cash generating unit.
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The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used in the discounted cash flow model 
and also to the expected cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation. As at December 31, 
2023 and 2022 the Company has tested for impairment of property, plant and equipment and as a result 
of the test, no impairment has been identified.

Allowance for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

For estimation of allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables the С 
to calculate expected credit losses (ECL). Estimated allowance rates are based 
of payment delay for groups of different customers with similar loss characteristic

ompany uses a matrix 
cm the number of days 
s.

Initially the matrix of estimated allowance is based on the observed data on the с 
previous periods. The Company adjust matrix of past experience credit losses ba 
information. At each reporting date observable data on the level of default in ргеч 
updated and changes in forecast estimates are analyzed.

ccurrence of defaults in 
sed for forward-looking 
ious periods are

Assessment the relationship between historical observed default levels, forecasted economic conditions 
and the ECL is a significant estimate. The value of the ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and 
projected economic conditions. The Company's past experience of credit losses and forecast of 
economic conditions may also not be accurate for the actual default of the buyer in the future.

Allowance for advances paid, other assets and obsolete inventories

Determining the direction of allowance for advances: paid, other assets and obsol 
management to make assumptions based on the best estimates of the Company 
assets. As a result of the general changes in the economy or other similar circum 
reporting date, management may draw conclusions that may differ from the findir 
preparation of these financial statements.

The fair value of financial instruments

3te inventories requires 
s ability to realize these 
stances after the 
g made in the

In cases when the fair value of financial instruments and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of 
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation 
techniques, including discounted cash flow model. As a source data for these models is used information 
from observable markets, but in those cases where this is not feasible, a certain proportion of judgment
is required to determine fair value. The judgments include considerations of such 
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect 
financial instruments recognized in financial statements.

Market rate of borrowings received

data as liquidity risk, 
the fair value of

The Company uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable market 
date to estimate the fair value of non-current borrowings. Borrowings in US dollars are discounted at a 
rate of 4.81%-8.04% (depending on terms), in euros -1.71-8.65%, in swiss francs - 4.85-7.82%, in 
kuwaiti dinars - 6.38-8.09%, in XDR - 6.38-7.82% and in Kyrgyz soms — 9.4-14.98% per annum as at 
December 31, 2023 which the Management of the Company has defined as the market rates on non­
current borrowings.

Taxes

There is uncertainty about the interpretation of complex tax laws as well as the amounts and timing of 
future taxable profits. The long-term nature and complexity of the existing contractual relationship, the 
difference between actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, 
may result in future adjustments to the amounts of income tax expense or economy already recorded.

The amount of possible tax liabilities may depend on the results of previous audits and different 
interpretations of tax legislation by the Company and the relevant tax authority. Such differences in 
interpretation may arise for large number of several issues.

In assessing tax risks management considers possible areas of rion-compliance v/ith tax laws that the 
Company cannot challenge or does not believe that it will be able to successfully $ppeal if additional 
taxes are accrued by the tax authorities. This definition requires significant judgments and may change 
as a result of changes in tax laws and regulations, the determination of expected results in pending tax 
proceedings and the results of compliance audits conducted by the tax authorities.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the tax loss can be offset. Significant m anagem ent judgm ent is 
required to determ ine the am ount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized in the financial 
statements based on the likely tim ing and amount of future taxable profit, as well as the tax planning 
strategy.

Employee defined benefit ob liga tions

The cost of the employee defined benefit obligaton and the present value o f the defined benefit 
obligation is determ ined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determ ination of 
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the 
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to 
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the 
appropriate d iscount rate, the Managem ent of the Company considers the interest rates of risk-free 
government bonds and extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined 
benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific 
countries. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future increase in 
salaries.

5. RESTATEMENT AND RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In 2023, the Company identified om issions in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2022 and earlier periods. In accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors, all adjustments were made on a retrospective basis. Comparative amounts have 
been presented and prior period adjustments have been made. The current year presentation provides 
better view of the financial position of the Company.

The impact of the change on the financial statements o f the Company for the year ended December 31, 
2022 is presented below:

Initially 
recognized in 

financial 
statements as at 

December 31,
2022

Statement of financial position
Accum ulated deficit (2,377,560)
Deferred tax liabilities 693,794

Statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income
Income tax - (4,102) - (4,102)

In 2023, the Company decided to bring the accounting for deferred tax liabilities into full compliance with 
IAS 12 Income Tax and to revise previously recognized amounts in the financial statements as at 
December 31, 2022 and earlier periods. As at December 31, 2022, the Com pany had significant tax 
losses that can be carried forward and used against future taxable income in the amount of 25,697,351 
thousand soms. The M anagem ent expects that the Com pany’s operations will not generate taxable 
income in the foreseeable future against which these losses can be offset. Accordingly, the allowance for 
impairment has been accrued for the amount of deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2022.

Amount of Amount of December 31,
adjustment reclassification 2022

(restated)

(1,435,622) - (3,813,182)
1,435,622 - 2,129,416
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

Cost

Construction 
in progress

Equipment
for

installation

Buildings and 
constructions

Equipment Office
equipment

Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Intangible
assets

Other Total

at December 31, 2021
(restated) 5,813,061 73,801 2,151,098 73,737,953 88,832 29,461 1,104,228 125,352 251,928 83,375,714

Additions 3,703,806 108,341 448 158,829 1,364 204 114,745 - 13,744 4,101,481
Borrowing costs capitalised 
Transferred from/(to)

133,303 - - - - * • * “ 133,303

inventory 5,222,066 47,912 357 7,775 40 - (1,061) - 1,132 5,278,221
Internal movement (1,310,638) (110,787) 40,042 1,350,204 3,379 432 19,079 116 8,173 -
Disposal (40,639) (395) (20,650) (1,120,919) (1,931) (159) (21,746) (3,774) (16,291) (1,226,504)

at December 31, 2022
(restated) 13,520,959 118,872 2,171,295 74,133,842 91,684 29,938 1,215,245 121,694 258,686 91,662,215

Additions 1,925,673 1,036,703 28,770 187,438 13,084 1,350 613 7,392 - 3,201,023
Borrowing costs capitalised 184,991 - - - - - - - - 184,991
Transferred from inventory 2,430,932 651,981 367 1,247 238 1,048 31,881 - - 3,117,694
Internal movement (2,968,834) 371,948 122,122 2,181,850 174,101 96,626 234,722 15,576 (228,111) -
Disposal (9,311) (2,633) (3,784) (386,061) (3,933) (752) (1,655) (15,575) (4) (423,708)

at December 31, 2023 15,084,410 2,176,871 2,318,770 76,118,316 275,174 128,210 1,480,806 129,087 30,571 97,742,215
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Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets as at December 31 2023 and 2022 are

Construction Equipment Buildings and Equipment Office 
in progress for constructions equipment

installation

Accumulated depreciation 
and amortization

at December 31, 2021

5. PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(restated) - - 651,857 25,438,550 47,935 16,814 642,363 67,540 185,631 27,050,690

Charge 64,101 2,586,012 5,593 2,099 84,664 12,906 21,870 2,777,245
Internal movement - - (295) 224 - 15 78 - (22) -

Disposal - - (19,837) (1,063,354) (1,862) (155) (15,862) (3,762) (14,552) (1,119,384)

at December 31, 2022
(restated) - - 695,826 26,961,432 51,666 18,773 711,243 76,684 192,927 28,708,551

Charge 61,858 2,640,660 20,809 7,669 90,691 11,095 2,712 2,835,494
Internal movement - - - - 92,502 88,215 11,858 - (192,575) -

Disposal - - (1,850) (243,111) (1,001) (750) (1,651) (89) (4) (248,456)

at December 31, 2023 _ _ 755,834 29,358,981 163,976 113,907 812,141 87,690 3,060 31,295,589

Net book value
at December 31, 2022 
(restated) 13,520,959 118,872 1,475,469 47,172,410 40,018 11,165 504,002 45,010 65,759 62,953,664
at December 31, 2023 15,084,410 2,176,871 1,562,936 46,759,335 111,198 14,303 668,665 41,397 27,511 66,446,626

presented as follows!

Furniture Vehicles Intangible Other Total
and fixtures assets
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As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 construction in progress consisted of equipm 
capitalized interest under the CASA-1000 electricity transmission project from Ce 
in 1:he amount of 14,359,289 thousand soms and 9,197,417 thousand soms, respectively

The CASA-1000 project is the largest energy project, which involves the construqti 
overhead line 450 km long from the 500 kV Datka substation to the Kyrgyz-Tajik 
connect the energy systems of Kyrgyzstan and Tajikistan with Afghanistan and P 
organize a unified electricity market.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 amount of fully depreciated property, plant, 
intangible assets amounted to 6,082,992 thousand soms and 5,241,133 thousan

Severelectro OJSC

In iaccordance with the pledge agreement dated December 12, 2006 and March I!8 , 2007 under the loan
agreement No. 16-2-5/4 dated August 9, 2016, the Company pledged equipment 
units, the estimated value of which is 815,437 thousand soms.

ent, materials and 
ntral Asia to South Asia

ion of a 500 kV 
border. The project will 
akistan to further

quipment and 
i  soms, respectively.

n the amount of 8,113

In accordance with the pledge agreement dated September 29, 2011, under the 
05/28 and the supplementary agreement No.19-05/26 dated April 30, 2015, the 
equipment in the amount of 720 units, the estimated value of which is 38,312 tho

loan agreement No.19- 
Company pledged 

jsand soms.

In accordance with the pledge agreement dated March 30, 2017, under the loan 
dated October 31, 2011, the Company pledged equipment in the amount of 11,5* 
vaUe of which is 3,867,915 thousand soms.

agreement No. 16-2/67 
1 units, the estimated

Jalalabadelectro OJSC

In accordance with the pledge agreement dated December 30, 2011 under loan 
dated March 5, 2011 concluded in accordance with Government Decree No. 54-f 
the Company provided 3,657 units of equipment as collateral with an estimated v 
thousand soms at the date of the loan agreement. In accordance with the pledge 
12, 2016 under additional loan agreement No. 19-05/25 dated May 22, 2015, the 
units of equipment as collateral with an estimated value of 137,485 thousand som 
loan agreement.

7. ADVANCES PAID

Long-term of advances paid as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 is presented as fallows:

Agreement No. 19-05/25 
dated March 4, 2011, 

alue of 355,683 
agreement dated July 
Company provided 814 
s at the date of the

Advances paid, long-term part
Advances paid for capital construction

December 31, 
202:

3,999

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

3,999
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As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, a significant part of the advances was paid 
Metal Construction INC, which are the main contractors for the construction of

:o Mitas Energy and 
thk CASA-1000 project.

December 31,
2023

Advances paid, short-term part
Advances paid for goods and services 
Advances paid for inventories 
Advances paid for electricity 
Other

Less: allowance for impairment

65,902
48,258

1,917
14

(60,647)

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

199,459 
12,281 
2,663 

__________460

(60,647)

55,444 154,216

Mest significant counterparties for advances paid of the Company consisted of thje following 
organizations:

Hexing Electrical Co.Ltd 
Gazprom Neft Azia LLC 
Electrosila LLC 
Specenergostroy LLC 
Production service LLC

December 31, 
202 3

20,061
16,731
5,600
2,050
1,950

Movement in allowance for impairment on advances paid for the years ended De 
2022 is presented as follows:

year
d

For the;
endec 

December 31, 
202:t

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

5,930

;ember 31, 2023 and

At -anuary 1 

Recovery 

At December 31

150,647

INVENTORIES

Inventories as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

December 31, 
2023

00,647

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

_______ 72,028

_______(11,381)

60,647

Materials
Spare parts
Low valuable items
Construction materials
Fue
Supplies and others

Less: allowance for obsolete inventories

1.3E
17
ie

(M

1,66

2,233
0,533
7,430

44,543
14,378
9,149

8,617)

J.649

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

1,522,784 
146,308 
104,394 
43,178 
14,088 

________ 8,870

(128,920)

1,710,702

8
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Movement in allowance for obsolete inventories for the years ended December 3 
presented as follows:

For the
end(!d

Decemb
202

1, 2023 and 2022 is

year

er 31,

As at January 1

Wrte-off
Recovery

As at December 31

128,920

(257)
_(46]

28,617

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

137,707

(169) 
________(8,618)

128,920

TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Treide and other accounts receivable as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

Accounts receivable for electricity 
Accounts receivable for rent 
Accounts receivable for goods and services 
Other receivables

Less: allowance for expected credit losses

December 31, 
202*

2,144,418
29,954
26,034
3,423

(944,133)

1,2 >9,696

IVio\/ennent in allowance for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is presented as follows:

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

2,522,504 
29,062 
19,537 

________ 4,741

(1,022,701)

1,553,143

For the Vear 
ended 

Decembi r 31, 
2022

At January 1

Accrual
Recovery

At December 31

1,0?

3J
J±

94

Most significant debtors of the Company consisted of the following organizations:

2,701

9,884
8,452)

4,133

December 31, 
2023

Kumtor Operating Company CJSC 
DSHL.KZ LLP 
KEGiOC OJSC 
Electrosila LLC
ETV Production Unit of Kara-Balta, Kyrgyzteploenergo State Enterprise

160,151
17,401
15,178
12,471
7,975

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

______ 581,509

530,083 
_______(88,891)

1,022,701

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

842,893
16,736

11,942 
1,043

9
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10. TAXES PAID IN ADVANCE

Taxes paid in advance as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 were presented as fo lows:

Income tax 
VAT receivable 
Personal income tax 
Property tax 
Other

December 31, 
2023

97,240
8,195
6,383

251
1,699

113,768

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

94,869
29,091
12,886

690
________ 1,179

138,715

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

Cash in bank account 
Cash in transit 
Cash on hand 
Deposits

December 31, 
202

643,943
331,710
120,400

936,053

Restricted cash as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

Restricted cash

December 31, 
202:i

9,047

9,047

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

174,461 
215,023 
43,039 

_______ 85,680

518,203

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

8,777

8,777

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, restricted cash represents tranches received under the loan
agreement between the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic and the European Investment Bank for the 
CASA-1000 project. These funds are used to pay for supplies from Mitas Energy and Metal Construction 
Company. The cash is expected to be used within 12 months after the reporting qate.

12. SHARE CAPITAL

In 2023, the General Meeting of Shareholders made a decision to increase the share capital of the 
Company in the amount of 5,395,299 thousand soms through issuing 3,260,184,690 shares of the 
nominal value of one share is 1.6549 soms, by using funds of the Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz 
Republic.

As at December 31, 2023, the registered share capital of the National Electrical Grid of Kyrgyzstan 
OJSC was 7,982,717 thousand soms and consists of 4,823,668,005 ordinary shares with par value of 
1.6549 soms each. As at December 31, 2022, the registered share capital of the National Electrical Grid 
o f Kyrgyzstan OJSC was 2,587,418 thousand soms and consisted of 1,563,483,315 ordinary shares with 
par value of 1.6549 soms each.
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As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 the structure of shareholders is presented as follows:

December 31, 2023 
Amount, Share

thousand soms

Decen|i 
Amount, 

thousand soms

Ministry of Energy of the Kyrgyz 
Republic
Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgyz 
Republic
Other legal entities 
Individuals
National Energy Holding Company 
OJSC ’
Social Fund of the Kyrgyz Republic

Dividends

4,817,148

2,660,640
386,967
117,962

60.34%

33.33%
4.85%
1.48%

7,982,717 100%

ber31, 2022 (restated) 
Share

56,998 
107,386

2,082,489
340,545

2 .20%
4.15%

80.49%
13.16%

2,587,418 100%

Dividends payable are limited by the maximum amount of retained earnings determined in accordance 
with the requirements of the legislation of the Kyrgyz Republic.

In 2022 the Company declared dividends of 62,103 thousand soms based on res

In 2023 and 2022 the Company paid dividends in the amount of 31,873 thousanc 
thousand soms, respectively.

13. BORROWINGS

Bo'rowings as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows

Nominal % rate Effective % rate

ults of 2021. 

soms and 26,399

Decemb
2023

эг 31, December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

drawing right 
Borrowings denomins 
frarc
Borrowings denomint 
dinar
Borrowings denominj 
soms

Unsimortized portion of discount on 
borrowings

in US dollars 0%-2.5% 4.81%-9.52% 67,4,>2,074 69,026,714
in Euro 1 %-5% 1,25%-8.83% 8,466,375 6,076,250
in Special

0%-6% 6.00%-8.83% 1,382,622 1,439,003
in Swiss

in Kuwaiti
0% 4.85%-7.82% 7 8,202 668,661

0% 6.38%-8.09% r9,283 76,579
in Kyrgyz

0%-21% 6.38%-6.38% 4,733 14,733

(16,601,701) (17,586,223)

61,481,588 59.715.717
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As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 movement of borrowings is presented as follows:

For the 
end4

Decer 
2023

at January 1

Additions 
Interest accrued 
Penalties accrued 
Principal repayments 
Interest repayments 
Penalties repayment 
Adjustment of penalties 
Foreign exchange difference

at December 31

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 short-term part of borrowi

3,1
1

year
d
r 31,

77,301,940

5Э

67(5
(1.5

3,34

35,561 
7,774 

48,383 
5,681) 

16,605) 
,197) 
,044) 

2,158

(17
(13

ngs is presented as, follows:

For the year 
ended 

December 31,

at January 1

Recognition of discount 
Discount amortization 
Foreign exchange difference

at December 31

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

75,326,582

2,853,615
1,359,120

(1,836,335)
(848,612)

(89)
(25,994)
473,653

78,083,289 77,301,940

202:1

17,5)56,223

407,267
(2,227,661)

745,872

16,601,701

The total balance of loans received by NEG Kyrgyzstan OJSO was provided by tf
Kyrgyz Republic 
omponents. The

for
Go

Kyrgyz Republic represented by the Ministry of Finance of the 
reconstruction and modernization of power grids and related с 
Kyrgyz Republic received funds provided to the Company fronfi international finan 
Asi:an Development Bank, European Investment Bank, Export-lmport Bank of 
Development Bank, Swiss Confederation, Kuwait Fund for Arab Development, Ex 
Turkey, International Development Association and Northern Development Fund

Since loans has a below-market interest rate the amortized cost of the loans was 
discounting future cash flows at the market interest rate determined as of the date 
Accordingly, for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 interest expenses 
amounted to 3,550,444 thousand som and 2,958,173 thousand som, respectively

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

18,321,152

847,175 
(1,729,623) 

______ 147,519

____ 17,586,223

e Government of the 
the construction, 

ivernment of the 
ial donors such as the 
a, Islamic

port-lmport Bank of

determined by 
of receiving the loans, 

(bn borrowings

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 the nominal value of these loans amounted tcj> 78,083,289 thousand 
som and 77,301,940 thousand som, respectively.

bet'According to the loan agreement # 19-05/75 dated December 31, 2015, signed 
Finance of the Kyrgyz Republic and the Company, the Company has to maintain I 
than one. As at December 31, 2023 the liquidity ratio was below the requirements 
financial covenants. The Company received a waiver from the Ministry of Finance 
stat ng that there is no basis for early collection in 2024.

ween the Ministry of 
quidity ratio not less 
of the established 
of the Kyrgyz Republic
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Deferred income as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 consisted of long-term and 
which are presented as follows:

14. DEFERRED INCOME

short-term portion,

December 31, 
2023

Deferred income, long-term part
at January 1

Grants received during the year 
Grants disposed 
Transferred to short-term part

at December 31

Deferred income, short-term part
at January 1

Transferred from long-term part 
Amortized during the year

at December 31

1,2 42,107

226,317
([48,685)
(64,576)

1,365,163

December 31, 
202B

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

970,006

349,570 
(15,982) 

_______(61,487)

1,242,107

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

5,343

54,576
(И.576)

During 2023 and 2022 the Company received property, plant and equipment from Ayil Okmotu, legal and 
private entities on a periodic basis. The largest counterparties are: ARIS, Hangzhou Sunrise Technology 
Co Ltd, Central Asia Tin Company LLC, Global Energy LLC.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment received on a granted basis for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022 was 226,317 thousand soms and 349,570 thousand soms, respectively.

61,487
(66,830)

15. LIABILITIES UNDER CONTRACTS WITH SUPPLIERS

Liabilities under contracts with suppliers as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

December 31, 
2023

Customer contract obligations 
Warranties

130,795 
Ы ,279

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

138,866
81,279

212,074

The main amounts of contractual obligations relate to the long-Herm provision of services in exchange for 
gratuitous fixed assets received from these suppliers. Guarantee obligations include a bank guarantee of 
the supplier in case of untimely supply or provision of services under the contract.

220,145
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Employee defined benefit obligations as at December 31, 2023 and

16. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

At January 1

Current service cost
Revaluation of defined benefit obligation
Payments
Adjustments
Interest expenses

At December 31

2022 are presented as follows: 

er 31,DecemL
2023

175,632

7,078
(132,034)
(19,512)
19,240
20,327

170,731

Decemb
202 )

er 31,

Long-term portion 
Current portion

The main assumptions used in determining the Company’s defined 
in the following table:

1 50,332
=>0,399

Decemb
2023

170,731

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

236,791

9,465 
(61,375) 
(25,022) 
(4,597) 

_______ 20,370

175,632

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

164,704 
_______ 10,928

______ 175,632

benefit obligations are summarized 

эг 31, December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

Discount rate 14.29% 13.02%
Average salary increase 7.62% 6.38%
Mortality rate 11.01% 9.03%
Employee turnover rate 7.07% 6.36%

17. TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Trade accounts payable, long-term part as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

December 31, 
2023

Accounts payable for electricity

Unarrortized portion of discount on trade and other accounts payable

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

321,919

(156,091)

165,828
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Trade accounts payable, short-term part as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are

Decemb
202

presented as follows:

er 31, 
3

Accounts payable for fixed assets and capital construction
Accounts payable for goods and services
Accounts payable for electricity
Accounts payable for transportation of electricity
Accounts payable for inventories
Other accounts payable

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

929,767 1,517,850
523,551 414,237
108,617 -

7 215,252
- 144,259

43,664 39,820

2,605,606 2,331,418

Movement in allowance for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is presented as follows:

year

At January 1 

Amortization 

At December 31

For the;
ended 

December 31, 
202)

1 56,091

(1 56,091)

Most significant creditors of the Company consisted of the following organization^:

Decemb;
202:i

Mitas Energy and Metal Construction Inc 
ZTE representative office in the Kyrgyz Republic 
Shenzhen Star Instrument Co Ltd 
Electric Power Plants OJSC 
Elkhan group LLC

r 31,

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

245,738

(89,647)

156,091

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

1,4^6,505 
247,683 
101,574 
(51,213 
35,480

1,192,168
247,683

167,639

18. ADVANCES RECEIVED

Advances received as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

December 31, 
2023

Advances received for electricity 
Advances received for goods and services 
Advances received for connections 
Other advances received

327,237 
48,472 
3,903 

943

393,555

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

234,700
16,903

165
________ 4,426

______ 256,194
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19. TAXES PAYABLE

Taxes payable as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

Social fund liabilities 
VAT payable
Personal income tax payable 
Fines and penalties 
Other taxes

December 31 
2023

410,822 
84,467 
52,789 

64 
16,611

20. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

574,753

Decemb
2023

эг 31.

Other financial liabilities
Guaranteeing tender procurement 
Guarantee from the agents 
Dividends payable 
Union dues 
Fines and fees 
Other liabilities

Other non-financial liabilities
Liabilities to the budget

18,942
55,984
22,875
10,054

99
6,494

14,448

2 4,448

21. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Employee benefit obligations as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented e

Decembo
202:

Employee benefits 
including:
Provision for unused vacation and bonuses 
Accrued salary
Defined benefit obligations, short-term part

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

541,166
93,434
73,800
4,232

__________957_

______ 713,589

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

74,698
61,422
54,747
6,288

408
________ 8,845

206,408

46,073

46,073

252,481

s follows:

r 31,

510,951
432,954

20,399

964,304

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

416,823
448,840

10,928

876,591
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Movement in provision for unused vacation and bonuses for the years ended De 
2022 is presented as follows:

For the
endod

Decemb
2023

As at January 1 

Accrual
Paid from vacation provision 

As at December 31

ember 31, 2023 and

year

er 31,

416,823

541,566
(447,438)

10,951

22. REVENUE

Revenue for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 Is presented as folio'

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

371,023

297,801
(252,001)

416,823

/vs:

yearFor the;
ende d 

December 31, 
2 0 2 $

Revenue from sale of electricity
Revenue from the transmission of export electricity
Other

22,513,442 
36,124 
9,006

22,5 38,572

23. COST OF SALES

Cost of sales for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

19,686,719 
133,968 

________ 5,686

19,826,373

follows:

Cost of purchased electricity 
Payroll and related taxes
Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets 
Materials
Non-recoverable VAT related to the purchase of electricity
Provision for unused vacation and bonuses
Normative losses
Fuel and lubricants
Services expenses
Business trips
Coordination services
Expenses on actuarial provision
Unplanned electricity flow expenses
Frequency control services
Transit of electricity
Other

For the /ear 
ended 

December 31, 
2023

9,372,795 
3,3^9,103 
2,5^2,210 
1,103,317 

425,635 
312,287 
1 B4.782 
1 75,229 
145,678 
61,245 
38,323 
25,510 
22,723 
21,405 

8,371
_______ 38,215

17,85[3,828

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated) 
7,742,138 
3,270,549 
2,551,756 

664,147 
503,944 
210,786 
131,613 
111,586 
32,863 
70,893 
33,311 
5,097 
5,081 
2,796 

16,477 
______ 106,097

____15,459,134
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24. SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented as follows:

For the 
end^ 

Decemb 
202 5

Payroll and related taxes
Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets 
Provision for unused vacation and bonuses 
Services expenses 
Materials
Fuel and lubricants 
Business trips
Electricity costs for production needs 
Income on actuarial provision 
Other

year
d
sr 31,

1,705,325
279,908
164,436

39,147
36,482
24,542
10,290
2,358

2,372,488

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

1,732,028
195,049
62,999
66,152
34,345
30,067

7,572
5,940
(248)

_________1,895

2,135,799

25. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2023 an^j 2022 are presented 
as follows:

For the 
ende 

Decembe
202:

Payroll and related taxes
Provision for unused vacation and bonuses
Services expenses
Trip expenses
Financial aid
Management fee
Fines, penalty to the State Budget
Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets 
Business trip 
Union dues
Fixed assets maintenance 
Bank services 
Materials
Taxes other than income tax 
Fuel and lubricants 
Utilities
Representative expenses 
Communication expenses 
Stationery
Expenses on actuarial provision 
Electricity costs for production needs 
Trainings 
Other

/ear
A
r 31,

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

78,634 559,155
74,445 23,589
^9,280 31,800
4l,292 10,713
38,066 38,426
31,090 26,693
26,524 63,185
25,882 27,774
18,222 20,932
15,472 2,907
15,414 1,641
14,786 10,103
14,629 11,009
ll4,524 109,383
1|2,582 8,581
3,532 5,764
4,607 4,961
3,261 3,920
2,081 2,317

705 (682)
502 458
497 1,047

23,349 44,662

1,11 r,376 1,008,338
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26. NET LOSS ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS

Net loss on foreign exchange operations for the years ended December 31, 202 
the following:

For the 
endi 

Decemb 
20 :

and 2022 consisted of

year
d
er 31, 

23

Foreign exchange differences, net 
Dealing operations, net

2,6

2,6

31,462
20,458

51,920

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

238,232 
__________ 196

238,428

27. FINANCE GAIN

Finance gain for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented a^ follows:

For the 
ends 

Decemb 
202$

Interest income 
Dividends

year
d
к  31,

42,605
2,865

>5,470

Interest income consists of interest accrued on balances of cash on settlement ac counts in the following 
banks: Keremet Bank OJSC, Bakai Bank OJSC, Aiyl Bank OJSC, Optima Bank OJSC, RSK Bank 
OJSC.

28. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are presented ak follows:

yearFor the;
endet 

December 31,

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

42,282 
__________493_

_______ 42,775

Unwinding of discount and modification effect on borrowings 
Interest expenses
Unwinding of discount on trade accounts payable 
Interest expenses on actuarial provision 
Adjustment of fines

2023

2,22 7,661
1,322,783

1S6,091
20,327
V 5,339

3,762,201

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

1,729,623
1,228,550

89,647
20,370

(25,994)

3,042,196
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29 OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (EXPENSES), NET

Other operating income and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2023 a nd 2022 is presented
as follows:

For the year For the year
ended ended

December 31, December 31,
202̂ 2022

(restated)
Other operating income:
Fines and penalties 538,076 78,368
Rent and hotel services 230,916 147,510
Services provided 138,288 142,710
Issuance of technical documents 8,380 16,302
Connection and disconnection of customers 5,611 8,432
Revenue from sale of inventories 4,090 18,393
Revenue from sale of electricity meters - 7,284
Other 6,510 30,375

981,871 449,374

For the year For the year
endi id ended

Decemb er 31, December 31,
202 3 2022

(restated)
Other operating expenses:
Payroll and related taxes 12,266 14,020
Cost of inventory 11,709 26,235
Cost of social services 4,244 19,019
Metrology expenses 1,521 -
Provision for unused vacation and bonuses 398 427
Other 3,205 6,310

33,343 66,011

948,528 383,363

30. OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES, NET

Other non-operating expenses, net for the years ended December 31, 2023 and ?022 is presented as 
follows:

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2023

Other non-operating income:
Grants received
Revenue from dismantlement activities 
Amortization of deferred income 
Income from sale of inventories
Revenues from exchange transactions and contracts with customers 
Gain from write-off of trade accounts payable 
Fines and penalties 
Other

26
2E

7,259 
3,791 

14,576 
21.571 

8,071 
2,187 

245 
1|0,768

628,468

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

379,351 
83,556 
66,830 
6,332 
8,124 
2,973 
5,483 

_______ 10,393

563,042
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For the 
end

year 
id

December 31, 
2023

Other non-operating expenses:
Accrual of allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other accounts 
receivable
Expenses on grants received
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Fines and penalties
G ain from  write - o ff o f advances paid
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Accrual of allowance for expected credit losses for other assets
Loss from write - off of inventory
Expenses on actuarial provision
Legrl fees
Accrual of allowance for obsolete inventories 
Excessive losses
Recovery of allowance for expected credit losses for cash 
Other

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

3)59,884 530,083
106,324 67,457
163,308 66,086
99,341 10,342
12,243 -

7,494 2,666
4,796 -

1,836 3,248
103 (1,009)

4 11,544
(46) (8,618)

- 41,487
- (9,011)

28,863 38,377

7b4,150

i l

752,652

55,682) (189,610)

31. INCOME TAX

The Company measures and records its current income tax payable and its tax biases in its assets and 
liabilities in accordance with the tax regulations of the Kyrgyz Republic, which may differ from IFRS. For 
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 income tax rate for legal entities cr 
Kyrgyz Republic was equal to 10%.

n the territory of the

The Company is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility of certain 
expenses and certain income being treated as non-taxable for tax purposes.

canDeferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tf- 
differences as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 relate mostly to different methods 
expense recognition as well as to temporary differences generated by tax -  book 
certain assets and liabilities.

rying amounts of 
purposes. Temporary 
of income and 
bases’ differences for

fearFor the 
ended 

December 31, 
202C

Deferred income tax (benefit) / loss 

Deferred income tax (benefit) / loss

(4C1,238)

(401,238)

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

________ 4,102

________ 4,102
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The relation between tax expenses and accounting profit for the years ended De
2022 was as follows:

For the

pember 31, 2023 and

endctd
Decemb

202

Loss before income tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 10%
Tax effect of permanent differences

Income tax (benefit) / loss

Temporary differences as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 comprise:

year

er 31,

(434,120)
32,882

(4 01,238)

December 31,
2023

Deferred income tax assets:
Tax loss carry forward
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other accounts receivable
Employee defined benefit obligations
Provision of unused vacation and bonuses
Allowance for obsolete inventories
Allowance for impairment losses on other assets
Allowance for impairment losses on advances paid
Accrued interest
Liabilities under contracts with suppliers 

Total deferred income tax assets 

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation of property, plant, equipment and amortization of intangible 
assets

Total deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets at statutory tax rate (10%)

Less: allowance on deferred income tax assets 

Net deferred income tax liabilities

30,3pi
91

1
5h 
1

5
21

0,343
4,133

170,731
0,951

28,617
16,690
30,647
54,466
2,074

32,8 78,652

17,231,778

17,2J31,778 

15,5^6,874

1,5!>9,687

(3,287,865)

(1,7i!8,178)

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had significant tax losses that 
and used against future taxable income in the amount of 30,300,343 thousand so 
thousand soms, respectively. The Company expects that the Company’s operatio 
taxable income in the foreseeable future against which these losses can be offset 
December 31, 2023 and 2022, a provision for impairment has been accrued for th 
thousand soms and 2,828,289 thousand soms, respectively.

For the year 
ended 

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

(1,820,994)

(182,099)
186,201

4,102

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

25,697,351 
1,022,701 

175,632 
416,823 
128,920 

11,744 
60,647 

548,916 
220,145

28,282,879

21.294.154

21.294.154 

6,988,725

698,873

(2,828,289)

(2,129,416)

can be carried forward 
ms and 25,697,351 
ns will not generate 
. Accordingly, as at 
e amount of 3,287,865
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Temporary differences between tax accounting and current financial statement a 
to deferred tax liabilities as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 as a result of the fol

s well as tax losses lead 
owing:

Temporary differences

Tax loss carry forward 
Allowance for expected credit losses 
on trade and other accounts receivable 
Employee defined benefit obligations 
Provision of unused vacation and 
bonuses
Allowance for obsolete inventories 
Allowance for impairment losses on 
other assets
Allowance for impairment losses on
advances paid
Accrued interest
Liabilities under contracts with
suppliers
Depreciation of property, plant, 
equipment and amortization of 
intangible assets _

Allowance on deferred income tax 
assets

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

2,569,735

102,270
17,563

41,682
12.892

1,174

6,065
54.892

22,015

(2,129,415)

December 31, 
2021

Temporary differences
Tax loss carry forward 
Allowance for expected credit losses 
on trade and other accounts receivable 
Employee defined benefit obligations 
Provision of unused vacation and 
bonuses
Allowance for obsolete inventories 
Allowance for impairment losses on 
other assets
Allowance for impairment losses on
advances paid
Accrued interest
Liabilities under contracts with
suppliers
Depreciation of property, plant, 
equipment and amortization of 
intangible assets

Allowance on deferred income tax 
assets

Recognized in 
the statement of 
profit and loss

460,299

(7,857)
(490)

9,413
(30)

495

(1,445)

(808)

401,237

(2,828,289) (459,576)

(2,129,416) 401,238

Recognized in 
the statement of 
profit and loss

2,240,856

58,151
23,044

39,282
6,524

1,174

6,065
901

22,678

(2,125,313)

(2,398,676)

(2,125,314)

Recogn
capi

ized in 
al

Recognized in
capit

328,879

44,119
(5,481)

2,400
6,368

53,991

(663)

(4,102)

al

(429,613)

(4,102)

December 31, 
2023

3,030,034

94,413
17,073

51,095
12,862

1,669

6,065
53,447

21,207

(1,728,178)

(3,287,865)

(1,728,178)

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

2,569,735

102,270
17,563

41,682
12.892

1,174

6,065
54.892

22,015

(2,129,415)

(2,828,289)

(2,129,416)
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital expenditure commitments

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 the Company had no capital expenditure corjnmitments.

Taxation

The Kyrgyz Republic currently has a number of laws related to various taxes imp 
and local governmental authorities. Legislation related to taxes has not been in f<j>rce for significant

Dsed by both republican

plementing regulations 
tablished and there are

period of time, in contrast to more developed market economies and therefore in- 
are often vague. Accordingly, few precedents with regard to issues have been es 
various opinions regarding legal interpretation. The tax authorities are enabled b^ law to impose 
significant penalties and interest charges for late and incorrect filling of tax declarations and/or tax
payments. These factors result in more significant tax risks in Kyrgyz Republic cn 
countries with more developed tax system.

Management believes that it has adequately accrued provisions for tax liabilities 
financial statements. However, the risk remains that relevant authorities could tal 
regard to tax issues and the effect could be significant as described above.

Operating environment

n the accompanying 
lie another position with

Emerging market of the Kyrgyz Republic is subject to more risks than developed 
economic, political, social, legal and legislative risks. As the experience from the 
perceived financial problems or an increase in the perceived risks associated with 
economies could adversely affect the investment climate in countries and the c o l  

general.

Laws and regulations affecting businesses in the Kyrgyz Republic continue to chnnge rapidly. Tax,

m pa red to other

markets, including 
aast shows, actual or 

investing in emerging 
ntries' economy in

currency and customs legislation within the country are subject to varying interpre 
arid fiscal difficulties leading to the challenges faced by the Company. The future 
the Kyrgyz Republic is largely dependent on economic, fiscal and monetary mea! 
government, together with legal, regulatory, and political developments

The new Tax Code of the Kyrgyz Republic was adopted on January 18, 2022 anc 
January 1, 2022. The following changes in tax legislation coulci affect the definitio 
tax liability:

• interest expenses are deductible to the extent actually paid;
• net losses from revaluation of foreign currency are not deductible;
• the procedure for calculating tax-deductible depreciation has changed;
• bad debts are not deductible from total annual income.

tations, and other legal 
economic direction of 
ures undertaken by the

became effective on 
n of the Bank's income

In addition, the obligations of the tax agent with respect to the payment of works 
organizations that do not have a permanent establishment in the Kyrgyz Republic 
If the territory of the Kyrgyz Republic is recognized as the place of delivery of such 
Bank has an obligation to withhold/pay VAT on the tax agent at the rate of 12 peri

and services of foreign 
have been expanded, 
works/services, the 

«bent.

Insurance

fdriThe insurance market in the Kyrgyz Republic is in a developing state and many 
protection common in other countries are not yet generally available in the Kyrgyz 
Nevertheless, the Company has insurance coverage for current operations, insurci 
against occupational accidents, industrial injuries and industrial diseases, as well 
parties at the level of generally accepted principles in the energy industry. Manage 
at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's insurance program is in complian 
provisions of the Company’s business rules.

ms of insurance 
Republic, 
nee of employees 
as civil liability to third 
ment believes that as 
ce with the major

These financial statements do not include any adjustments that would be necessa 
uncertainty in the future. Possible adjustments may be made to the consolidated fi 
the period when the need to reflect them becomes apparent and it becomes possi 
numerical values.

у to resolve this 
nancial statements in 
3le to estimate their
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Litigation and claims

The Company continues to be involved in litigation from time to time, none of wh 
on the Company's operations, individually or in aggregate. Management believes 
from legal proceedings do not have a significant effect on the financial position or 
activities in the future of the Company.

ch has a material effect 
that liabilities arising 
the results of financial

T ariffs

Tariffs are usually based on the cost of services without taking into account the 
return. At the same time, the level of tariffs is significantly affected by social and

Tariffs for electricity for consumers are set by the Department for Regulation of tljie Fuel and Energy 
Complex under the Ministry of Energy of the Kyrgyz Republic.

established rate of 
political factors.

According to the Medium-Term Electricity Tariff Policy of the Kyrgyz Republic for 
by the Cabinet of Ministers of the Kyrgyz Republic on September 30, 2021 No. 1 
Cabinet of Ministers Resolution No. 199 dated April 6 , 2023) from May 1, 2023 n£w tariffs was taken 
effect.

2021-2025,approved 
32 (and amended by

Population, including:
consumption of up to 700 kWh/month (except for highland and remote hard-to- 
reach areas)
consumption of over 700 kWh/month (except for highland and remote hard-to- 
reach areas)
consumption of highland and remote hard-to-reach areas 
Low-income families receiving a monthly allowance for needy citizens 
(families) with children under 16 years old - “uy bulege kemek", if the 
consumption of up to 700 kWh/month
Low-income families receiving a monthly allowance for needy citizens 
(families) with children under 16 years old - “uy bulege kemek”, if the 
consumption of over to 700 kWh/month
Population using electricity without restrictions on consumption and capacity 
(with a raising factor 1.3)
Pump stations 
Electric transport
Public and private electric vehicle charging stations with capacity of up to 23 
kW
Public and private electric vehicle charging stations that use electricity without 
restrictions on consumption or capacity (with a raising factor 1.3)
Children's institutions of residential type, social in-patient clinic for the disabled
and/or elderly citizens
Religious organizations
Budget consumers
Agricultural
Industrial
Other consumers
Mining subjects (crypto currency) (with a raising factor 2.0)
Gold mining enterprises (gold mining plants) (with a raising factor 2.0) 
Casthouse and steel melting shop (with a raising factor 2.0)
Enterprises for the production of alcoholic beverages (with a raising factor 2.0) 
Cement plants (with a raising factor 1.3)
For consumer groups "Population" and "Pumping stations" of Toktogul 
district of Jalal-Abad oblast and Zhazy-Kechuu village of Kara-Kul and 
Kara-Kul city
Consumption of up to 150 kWh/month 
Pump stations

33. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Measure ment
uni

som/kW p5Г hour

som/kW pэг hour
som/kW pзг hour

Tariffs in soms

1.00

som/kW por hour

som/kW ppr hour

som/kW рчг hour 
som/kW piir hour 
som/kW p<sr hour

som/kW pur hour

som/kW por hour

som/kW
som/kW
som/kW
som/kW
som/kW
som/kW
som /kW
som/kW
som /kW
som/kW
som/kW

per hour 
p^r hour 

r hour 
p^r hour 
p^r hour 

r hour 
r hour 
r hour

per hour
r hour 
r hour

som/kW 
som/kW pe

per hour 
r hour

2.16
1.00

0.50

2.16

3.276
1.247
1.914

2.87 

4.42

1.914
1.914 
3.40
2.87
2.87
2.87
5.04
5.04
5.04
5.04 
3.28

0.192
0,192

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the Substance of the 
relationship, and not merely the legal form.
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In the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 the folic 
represented which arose due to transactions with related parties:

wing amounts were

December 31, 2023

Trade and other accounts receivable 
Trade accounts payable 
Advances paid
Other liabilities, short term part

Related party 
transactions

6,112
(104,866)

32
(443)

Total category 
as per the 
financial 

statements 
caption

1,259,696
(2,605,606)

55,444
(214,448)

Related
transact

December 31, 2022 
(restated)

party
ions

1,752 
(4^2,022) 

5,398 
(131,755)

In the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years
2023 and 2022 the following amounts were represented which arose due to trans 
parties:

For the year ended December 31, For the year ended December 31,
2023

Revenue
Selling expenses
Cost of sales
Other operating income
Other non-operating expenses, net
General and administrative expenses
compensations to Management
other

Related party 
transactions

10,514

Total category 
as per the 
financial 

statements 
caption

1,553,143
(2,497,246)

154,216
(206,408)

ejnded December 31, 
actions with related

2022 
(restated)

party

(9,462,371)
9,196

(22,041)
(43,551)

Total category Related
as per the transactions 
financial 

statements 
caption

22,568,572 ^9,873
(2,372,488) (1,258)

(17,856,828) (8,749,040)
981,871 2,681
(155,682) (9,653)

(1.117.376) (’ 1,977)
(1.117.376) ('16,346)

Nature of related parties is presented as follows:

ASSETS:
Trade and other accounts receivable

LIABILITIES:
Trade accounts payable

Other liabilities

PROFIT AND LOSS:
Revenue 
Cost of sales

Selling expenses 
Other operating income

General and administrative expenses 
Compensations to Management
Other

Counterparty Natur
Electric Power Plants OJSC Under control

e of related parties
of Parent company

Electric Power Plants OJSC Under control
NEHC OJSC Parent compai
Chakan HPP OJSC Under control
KESC OJSC Under control
NEHC OJSC Parent comp

Total category 
as per the 
financial 

statements 
caption

19,826,373
(2,135,799)

(15,459,134)
449,374

(189,610)

(1.008.338)
(1.008.338)

of Parent company 
ny until September 2023 
of Parent company 
of Parent company 

any until September 2023

Electric Power Plants OJSC 
Electric Power Plants OJSC 
Chakan HPP OJSC 
KESC OJSC
Electric Power Plants OJSC 
KESC OJSC
Electric Power Plants OJSC 
NEHC OJSC

Management of the Company Management 
NEHC OJSC Parent compni

Under control of 
Under control of 
Under control 
Under control 
Under contro 
Under contro 
Under contro
Parent compuny

Parent company 
Parent company 
Parent company 
Parent company 
Parent company 
Parent company 
Parent company 
until September 2023

of the Company 
ny until September 2023
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34. RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital risk management - The Company manages its capital to ensure that the 1"lompany will be able to
continue as a going concern.

Decemb er 31, December 31,
202 3 2022

(restated)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 996,053 518,203
Restricted cash 9,047 8,777
Trade and other accounts receivable 1,259,696 1,553,143
Investments 31,940 19,075
Other assets 39,149 19,305

Total financial assets 2,3 35,885 2,118,503

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 61,4 31,588 59,715,717
Trade accounts payable 2,6 )5,606 2,497,246
Employee defined benefit obligations, long-term part 150,332 164,704
Employee benefit obligations 9 54,304 876,591
Other liabilities 2 14,448 206,408

Total financial liabilities 65,4 16,278 63,460,666

Management of risk is fundamental in the Company’s business. The main risks irjherent to the 
Company’s operations are those related to:

• Credit risk;
• Operational risk;
• Geographical concentration
• Liquidity risk;
• Currency risk.

The Company recognizes that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk ms 
in place. To enable this, the Company has established a risk management framewi 
purpose is to protect the Company from risks and allow it to achieve its planned о 
principles are used by the Company to manage the following risks:

Credit risk

nagement processes 
ork, whose main 

bjectives. These

Credit risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents and from customers, irhcluding receivables 
outstanding and confirmed transactions. The company provides its services to only a few large buyers 
with a stable financial position and an appropriate credit history. The carrying amount of cash and cash 
equivalents and trade receivables, less allowances for expected credit losses, represents the maximum 
exposure to credit risk. The Company does not have a policy of assigning internal 
credit limits for counterparties.

Operational risk

The Company is exposed to operational risk, which is a risk of loss arising from 
interruptions of internal processes, systems, human error or the influence of exte

ratings and setting

an
rnal

у system failures or 
negative factors.

The Company’s risk management policy is designed to identify and analyze risks ^nd set appropriate 
risk limits and controls.

Geographical concentration

Risk management department exercise control over the risk associated with chanib 
legislation and assesses its impact on the Company. This approach allows the Co 
potential losses from the investment climate in the Kyrgyz Republic.

es in the norms of the 
mpany to minimize
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The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is set out below:

Kyrgyz Republic OECD countries

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash
Trade and other accounts receivable
Investments
Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade accounts payable 
Employee defined benefit obligations 
Employee benefit obligations 
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities 

Net position

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash
Trade and other accounts receivable
Investments
Other assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade accounts payable 
Employee defined benefit obligations 
Employee benefit obligations 
Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net position

996,053
9,047

1,241,572
26,406
39,149

2,312,227

61,481,588
685,358
150,332
964,304
192,795

63,474,377

1,880,291

1,117

1,881,408

(61,162,150) (1,881,408)

Kyrgyz Republic OECD countries

518,203
8,777

1,538,157
13,541
19,305

331

2,097,983 331

59,715,717
1,153,906

164,704
876,591
200,371

62,111,289

(60,013,306)

974,677

1,113

975,790

(975,459)

Othor

18,124
5,534

23,658

39,957

20,536

130,493

(:36,835)

Other

4,655
5,534

20,189

3f >8,663

4,924

3/

(3£

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk - the risk of difficulties in obtaining funds for the payment of obligations upon the occurrence 
of the actual date of payment and to meet cash requirements in the process of lending to clients.

3,587

3,398)

December 31, 
2023

996,053 
9,047 

1,259,696 
31,940 

_______ 39,149

2,335,885

61,481,588
2,605,606

150,332
964,304
214,448

65,416,278

(63,080,393)

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

518,203 
8,777 

1,553,143 
19,075 

_______ 19,305

2,118,503

59,715,717
2,497,246

164,704
876,591
206,408

63,460,666

(61,342,163)

Management controls this risk by maturity analysis, determining the Company’s st|r; 
fiscal period. Current liquidity is managed by the Company in order to support the 
liquidity sufficient to minimize liquidity risk.

ategy for the next 
current level of
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The following table presents an analysis of balance sheet interest rate risk and liq jidity risk:

Weigh. Less than 1 1 -3 3 months - 1 -5  years More thai Timeless December
aver. month months 1 year five years 31,2023
rate

Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 0.73% 996,053 - - - - 996,053

Restricted cash - - 9,047 - - • 9,047
Trade and other
accounts receivable 1,210,351 30,302 19,043 - - - 1,259,696
Investments . - - - - 31,940 31,940
Other assets 19,170 . 17,522 2,457 - - 39,149

Total financial
assets 2,225,574 30,302 45,612 2,457 - 31,940 2,335,885

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1.56% 517,819 835,772 4,800,147 23,354,369 48,575,182 - 78,083,289
Trade accounts
payable 206,049 425,940 933,411 1,040,206 - - 2,605,606
Employee defined
benefit obligations 14.29% - - - 150,332 - - 150,332
Employee benefit
obligations 432,954 - 531,350 - - - 964,304
Other liabilities,
short term part 16,354 6,272 191,822 - - - 214,448

Total financial
liabilities 1,173,176 1,267,984 6,456,730 24,544,907 48,575,U 2 - 82,017,979

Net position 1,052,398 (1,237,682) (6,411,118) (24,542,450) (48,575,16 2) 31,940 (79,682,094)

Peiriods of maturity of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace interest liabili 'es in acceptable costs
(at the time of redemption) are the most important conditions in determining the li luidity of the Company
and its sensitivity to fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates.

Weigh. Less than 1 1 -3 3 months - 1 -5  years More than Undefined December
aver. month months 1 year five year 31,2022
rate (restated)

Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 0.73% 518,203 - - . - . 518,203
Restricted cash - . 8,777 _ _ _ 8,777
Trade and other
accounts receivable 463,312 912,089 177,742 - - - 1,553,143
Investments - - - - - 19,075 19,075
Other assets 3,952 - 12,185 3,168 - - 19,305

985,467 912,089 198,704 3,168 _ 19,075 2,118,503

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1.48% 483,062 818,577 4,381,128 22,161,672 49,457,5( 1 _ 77,301,940
Trade accounts
payable 0.79% 241,929 394,385 1,695,104 - 165,82 8 _ 2,497,246
Employee defined
benefit obligations 13.02% - - - 164,704 _ _ 164,704
Employee benefit
obligations 448,840 - 427,751 - - . 876,591
Other liabilities 13,658 4,841 187,909 - - - 206,408

1,187,489 1,217,803 6,691,892 22,326,376 49,623,32 9 81,046,889

Net position (202,022) (305,714) (6,493,188) (22,323,208) (49,623,32 9) 19,075 (78,928,386)
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in floating interest rates will adversely impact the financial 
results of the Company. The Company does not use any derivatives to manage irpterest rate risk 
exposure.

Undiscounted liabilities analysis

The table below presents distribution of Group’s liabilities as at December 31, 20^3 and 2022 for 
contractual undiscounted cash outflows:

Weigh. Less than 1 1 -3  months 3 months - 11-5 years llflore than December
aver.
rate

Borrowings 1.56%
Trade accounts
payable
Employee
defined benefit
obligations 14.29%
Employee benefit
obligations
Other liabilities

month

141,873

206,049

432,954
16,354

1 year Five years 31,2023

1,117,209

425,940

5,884,467 27,973,465 p2,666,663 87,783,677

- 2,605,606

6,272

933,411 1,040,206

- 293,152 

531,350
191,822___________ -

797,230 1,549,421 7,541,050 29,306,823

293,152

964,304
214,448

52,666,663 91,861,187

Weigh. Less than 1 1 -3  months 3 months - 11-5 years More than December

Borrowings 
Trade accounts 
payable 
Employee 
defined benefit 
obligations 
Employee benefit 
obligations 
Other liabilities

aver.
irate

1.48% 

0.79%

13.02%

month

134,288

241,929

448,840
13,658

981,036

394,385

1 year

5,339,908 26,125,657 

1,695,104 -

303,725

4,841
427,751
187,909

five years 31,2022 
(restated)

52,650,328 85,231,217 

321,921 2,653,339

303,725

876,591
206,408

838,715 1,380,262 7,650,672 26,429,382 52,972,249 89,271,280

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the financial results of the Company will be adversely 
in exchange rates to which the Company is exposed. The Company does not use 
manage foreign currency risk exposure, at the same time the management of the 
mitigate such risk by managing monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency 
less stable) level.

' impacted by changes 
any derivatives to 
Company is trying to 
at the same (more or
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Information about the level of foreign currency exchange rate risk of the Company is presented as 
follows:

KGS USD EUR Otheirs December 31,
2023

Financial assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Trade and other 
accounts 
receivable 
Investments 
Other assets

914,444

1,241,572
31,940
39,149

80,836
9,047

3,791

-

I

773

4,333

996,053
9,047

1,259,696
31,940
39,149

Total financial 
assets 2,227,105 93,674 15,106 2,335,885

Financial
liabilities
Borrowings 216,497 49,998,816 8,221,2111 3,045,064 61,481,588
Trade accounts 
payable 732,736 1,839,841 _ * 3,029 2,605,606
Employee defined 
benefit obligations 150,332 _ _ 150,332
Employee benefit 
obligations 964,304 _ _ - 964,304
Other liabilities 180,392 22,551 3,554 7,951 214,448

Total financial 
liabilities 2,244,261 51,861,208 8,224,765 3,0!!6,044 65,416,278

Net position (17,156) (51,767,534) (8,224,765) (3,0 r0,938) (63,080,393)

KGS USD EUR Others December 31,

Financial assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents 427,396 90,684 123

2022
(restated)

518,203
Restricted cash - 8,777 - . 8,777
Trade and other
accounts
receivable 1,538,157 4,944 0,042 1,553,143
Investments 19,075 - - - 19,075
Other assets 19,305 - - - 19,305

Total financial 
assets 2,003,933 104,405 0,165 2,118,503

Financial
liabilities
Borrowings 3,351 52,493,990 5,815,631 1,402,745 59,715,717
Trade accounts 
payable 1,272,885 1,205,211 18,839 311 2,497,246
Employee defined 
benefit obligations 164,704 164,704
Employee benefit 
obligations 876,591 876,591
Other liabilities 206,408 - - . 206,408

Total financial 
liabilities: 2,523,939 53,699,201 5,834,470 1,403,056 63,460,666

Net position (520,006) (53,594,796) (5,834,470) (1,3£>12,891) (61,342,163)
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Currency risk sensitivity

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of the Company to 1% and 5% increase and decrease 
of US dollar to Kyrgyz som in 2023 and 2022. Based on the current economic environment in the Kyrgyz 
Republic, the management of the Company believes that 1% and 5% increase or reduction of Kyrgyz 
som to US dollar is a realistic change. 1% and 5% are a levels of sensitivity, whicp are used by the 
Company when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel of the Company 
and are an estimate by the management of possible changes in exchange rates. Sensitivity analysis 
applies only to outstanding foreign currency balances available at the end of the period for conversion of 
which actual end-of-the-period exchange rate changed by 1% and 5% is used.

Impact on net income based on the nominal value of the asset as at December 3JI, 2023 and 2022 is 
represented below:

December 31, 2023

Official 
exchange rate, 

+ 1%

Official 
exchange rate, 

■1%

Offici 
exchange rate, 

+ 1%

December 31, 2022 
(restated) 

al Official
exchange rate, 

- 1%

Effect on profit and loss (517,675) 517,675

December 31, 2023

Official Official
exchange rate, exchange rate, 

+ 5% -5%

(535,948) 535,948

December 31, 2022 
(restated)

Official Official
exchange rate, exchange rate, 

-5%

Effect on profit and loss 

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

(2,588,377) 2,588,377

+ 5%

(2,679,740) 2,679,740

The above tables demonstrate the effect of changes based on the main clause wjiile other assumptions 
remain unchanged. In fact, there is a connection between the assumptions and other factors. It should 
also be noted that the sensitivity has nonlinear character so should not be interpolated or extrapolated 
from these results.

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities as at 
December 31, 2023:

Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Trade and other 
accounts 
receivable 
Investments 
Other assets

Borrowings 
Trade accounts 
payable
Employee defined 
benefit obligations 
Employee benefit 
obligations 
Other liabilities

Valued at 
amortized cost

996,053
9,047

1,259,696

39,149

2,303,945

61,481,588

2,605,606

150,332

Valued at fair 
value through 
profit and loss

Valued at fair 
value through 

OCI

31,940

31,940

Total carrying 
amount

996,053
9,047

1,239,696
31,940
^9,149

2,335,885

964,304
214,448

65,416,278

Fair value

996,053
9,047

1,259,696
31,940
39,149

2,335,885

61,481,588

2,605,606

150,332

964,304
214,448

65,416,278
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The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial asset^ and liabilities as at 
December 31, 2022:

Valued at Valued at fair 
amortized cost value through 

profit and loss

Valued at fair 
value through 

OCI

Total carrying Fair value

Cash and cash
equivalents 518,203
Restricted cash 8,777
Trade and other
accounts
receivable 1,553,143
Investments -
Other assets 19,305

2,099,428

Borrowings 59,715,717
Trade accounts
payable 2,497,246
Employee defined
benefit obligations 164,704
Employee benefit
obligations 876,591
Other liabilities 206,408

19,075

19,075

aimount

5 18,203 518,203
8,777 8,777

1,5 >3,143 1,553,143
19,075 19,075
19,305 19,305

2,1 18,503 2,118,503

59,7| 

2,

1
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87
2

63,460,666

5,717

7,246

,704

6,591
Ф6.408

63,460,666

59,715,717

2,497,246

164,704

876,591
206,408

63,460,666

Levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction other than in forced or 
liquidation sale. The estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the 
Company could realize in a market exchange from the sale of its full holdings of a

The carrying amount of cash is approximately equal to its fair value due to the sh<t> 
such financial instruments.

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the amount that would be received in a sale of an a 
a liability in the ordinary course of business in the principal (or most advantageous 
the valuation in the current market conditions. As no markets exist for most of the 
instruments, judgment is necessary in arriving at fair value, given the current ecor 
the specific risks attributable to the instrument.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the following methods and assumptions have been used by the
Company in estimating the fair value of financial instruments for which it has been 
determine this value:

particular instrument, 

rt-term maturity of

^set or paid to transfer 
) market at the date of 
Company's financial 
omic environment and

Cash and cash equivalents - the present value of cash and cash equivalents corn 
value.

practicable to 

■^sponds to the fair

Trade and other accounts receivable - the present value approximates the fair value of these financial 
instruments as the allowance for doubtful debts is a reasonable estimate of the discount required to 
reflect the credit risk.

Trade and other accounts payable and other payables and accrued expenses - the present value 
approximates the fair value of these financial instruments due to the short-term nature of the instrument.

Long-term liabilities - the present value approximates fair value because the rate of return on long-term 
liabilities approximates the market rate, with reference to finance leases with similar credit risk and 
maturity at the reporting date.
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Fair value is primarily determined using quoted market prices or standard pricing 
available market inputs, where appropriate, and represents expected gross futur^ 
The Company classifies fair value of financial instruments into a three-level hierai 
degree of source and observability of inputs that are used to measure the fair val^J 
or liability as follows:

models based on 
cash inflows/outflows, 

(•chy based on the 
e of a financial asset

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mark 
or liabilities that the Company could access at the valuation

Level 2 inputs are inputs that are not quoted prices included 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are non-observable inputs for an asset or liability

ets for identical assets 
date.

in Level 1 and that are

Level 1 initial data primarily include financial assets and financial liabilities traded 
Level 2 classification primarily includes financial assets and financial liabilities wh 
determined primarily by reference to currency quotations and readily observable 
classification primarily includes financial assets and financial liabilities whose fair 
from models that use appropriate market assessments, quality and credit differen 
where the Company is unable to confirm fair value using observable market inputs 
is possible that another valuation model may result in significantly different fair val

at the exchange, while 
ose fair value is 
quotes. Level 3 
value arises primarily 
tials. In environments 

(Level 3 fair value), it 
ue estimates.

It is the Company's policy that transactions related to trading in financial instrumeh 
part of general netting agreements or other fixed-term agreements to offset balan 
counterparties in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy.

ts are formalised as 
ces due to or from

The following tables show the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities 
2023 and 2022. Other assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a ri 
and cash equivalents. No fair value estimates have been made on a regular baste

Level 1 Level 2 Level

as of December 31, 
^gular basis are cash

December 31, 
2023

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash
Trade and other accounts receivable
Investments
Other assets

996,053
9,047

26,405
1,2!>9,696

5,535
>9,149

996,053
9,047

1,259,696
31,940
39,149

Borrowings
Trade accounts payable 
Employee defined benefit obligations 
Employee benefit obligations 
Other liabilities

1,031,505

61,481,588

1,304,380

2,605,606
150,332
96-4,304
214,448

2,335,885

61,481,588
2,605,606

150,332
964,304
214,448

61,481,588 3,9:4,690 65,416,278
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Level 1 Level 2 Leve

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash
Trade and other accounts receivable
Investments
Other assets

Borrow ings
Trade accounts payable 
Employee defined benefit obligations 
Employee benefit obligations 
Other liabilities

518,203
8,777

13,540
1,55

540,520

59,715,717
2,4?

1I>
8| '
20

59,715,717

3,143
5,535

19,305

1,577,983

7,246
i-4,704
6,591
6,408

3,744,949

December 31, 
2022 

(restated)

518,203 
8,777 

1,553,143 
19,075 

_______ 19,305

2,118,503

59,715,717
2,497,246

164,704
876,591
206,408

63,460,666

35. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by management of the Company and au 
March 26, 2024.

36. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

The Company has paid for the period from January 12 to March 19, 2024 the prir 
from international financial donors such as Asian Development Bank, Islamic Dev 
Confederation Grant, Export-lmport Bank of Turkey and International Developmen 
amount of 9,892,319 thousand soms, which is equivalent to 101,076 thousand US 
thousand euro, 1,801 thousand SDR and 71 thousand CHF.

In 2024, the General Meeting of Shareholders decided to increase the share capi 
the amount of 10,000,000 thousand soms by issuing 6,042,639,173 shares with 
share equal to 1.6549 soms, by using funds of the Ministry of Finance of the Kyrgy:

As at the date of issue of these financial statements no other significant events or 
which should be disclosed in accordance with IAS 10 “Events after the reporting

norized for issue on

cipal amount of loans 
elopment Bank, Swiss 
t Association in the 
dollars, 6,387

:al of the Company in 
r|ominal value of one 

z  Republic.

transactions occurred, 
rieriod”.
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